THE INSTITUTION OF

Introducticn

Traditionally the retiring Divisicp Chairman presents an
address to the Annual General HMeeting, and in past yesrs
the selected topics have covered a very wide range. o~
night we have witnessed thas unveiling of an honour hoard
of Chairmen, and the presentation of the Eirst set of
medals for those Awards of the Institution whiech are
sdministered through the Weatern Auztralie Division.
all tends to create an interest in Ferzonalitias and
ctivities of the past. "harefere under these circum-
stances, [ felt it appropriate that T should attempt to
briefly review tha history of the Tnstitution - plaging
particular emphasis on the role of itz Division ip
Hestern Australia.

This

Ihe Western Australian Institution of Engineers

By the end of World wWar I in 1518, at least coe engineering
eociety had been established in each State in the Common=
ealth of Australia. Two of thece societries had interstate
ranches, but the others restricted their activities within
the boundaries of individual States.

@ of these engineering societies was the Western
UStralian Institution of Engineers. It was founded in
but had its inaugural Year of operatisn in 1910
er ipoll,

afted along the same lines as the Institution of Ciwil
§ineers, London. It had as its declared obiesctive

"the advancement of engineering knowledge and
practice, and the maintenance of a highly
professional standard among its mzmbers; the
premotion of the professional interests of
engineers and the improvement of their
Frefesgsional status™.

vision was made for beth cozperate and non-corporate
tdes of membership.

different Prasident was elacted for cach of the ten

8r3 that the Institution remained in existence, but
%g- ¥.B. Shaw held the pogsition of Honorary Secretary for
¢t nine year period 1910~1918.

® first Precident of the Western Augtralian Ynstitution
Engincers was Mr. James Thompson who was the Engineer
Chief of the Public Works Department. Mr. Thompson's
Mgrral address, which was presented on 31 March, 1614,
& most yaluable, comprehensive Yeview of the State's
1y engineering development, Lt was published in the

t Yolume of the Proceedings of the Western Australian
{tution of Engincers dated October 1910 . :

 founders of the Western Australian Institution of
he 258 had recognised the inherant wamkness of smell
ﬁep?ﬂdent sacistics, and in Rule Na. 73 of its
BEtitution provided as follows:—

I the event of the proposed establishment of

30 Institution, having sbjects similar to this

IHStitution, for the whole of the Commonweaith

°f Australia and representing each of the

s*‘teﬁ, the Cowncil is empowered to negotiare
2 view to affiliation.™
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In Wovember 1910 the Wegtern Australian Institution of
Enginesrs wrote to all the other engineering societiez ang
suggested some form of amalgamation. Thiz is recognised
84 the esarliest in a series of activities by the varicus
societies which were eventually to lead +o Lhe formation
vf the Inztitution of Engingers Australia. Although tha
subsequent moves were initisted and followed ap by ather
organisations, the Western Avstralian Institytion of
Engineers meintained close liaison, and finally it was
one of the ten existing autonemous orginisations which
accepted the constitution for the new Imstitution on

1 Augnst 1913, and thereby became one of its Feundation
Societiag,

Reports in the 1920 Transactions of the Institution gquete
the number ¢of Foundation Socleties as 12, because the
individual branches of two societles wers originally
considered as separate units. o©On the other hand, the
Bye-laws of the Institution refer to 11 Foundation
Societies, and this pumber is obtained by the inclusieon
of the Institution of Municipal Engineérs of Vietoria,
which amalgamated in 1926.

The three societies which decided not to amalgamate and
become Foundation Seciecties of .the Institution of,
Engineexs Australia, were the Australasian Institnte of
Mining and Metallvrgy, the Victorian Institute of
Engineers and the Victorian Branch of the Institute of
Local Government Engineers. Of these societiss only the
first bas survived.

Divisions of the Institution

The Institution of Engineers Australia was thus established
a3 an independent federal organization by an amalgamation
of the varicus State societies. Due to the smallness of
its nenmbership, the vastness of the area it covered, and
the difficulties with communicatieong, it was inevitable
that thé initial organizatianal structure of the new
Institution shomld be formed on a geocgraphic basis, by
dividing the Commonwealth of Australia inte a pumber of
convenient arexs. Furthex, because of the historical
background of the Australian political system, amd the
inEluence of the Foundation Socleties, it was also
inevitable that the geaqraphic sub-division would follow
State boundaries and that +he basie wunit woyld be known
as a Divigion,

Initially {with the exception of Tasmania), the Divigions
adopted the name of the ¢ity in whieh thoir office was
established, .

The sitvation in Western Australia iz explained, as follows
in & letter sent to the Begistrar of Companies by Associate
Professor RAlfred Tomlinsen

“the Western Australian Institution of Engineers,
incorporated during the year 1911, has cea=ed +o
exist, having been absorbed by resolution by the
FPerth Division of the Institution of Enginaers
Australia om 1 August 1915°%,

Professor Tomlinson was Honorary Secretary of the Western
hustralian Institution of Engineers in 1919 and of the
Perth Divigion of the Institution of Engineers hustralia
from 1920 o 1922.




Under the terms of the ama)gamation which applied to all
Foundation Societies, Members amd Assosiate Members of the
Wegtern Australian Institution of Engincers were automati=-
cally accepted as FPoundation hssociate Members of the
Institution of Engineers Australia, while eight of them
weye transferred to the grade of Member within 12 months.
Bowever, in 1920 the total membership of the Perth
plvizion was only 79, making it the second smallest of all
the Divisions, with only 5 more menbers than Tasmania
pivision. Sydney Division with & membership of 851 was
easily the largest,

In 1920 the Perth Division established its office and
meeting room in (Queens Bulldings, William Strmet, but
meaved to the Professional Societies Rooms at 333 Murray
Styact in March 1922,

srominent Personalitigs of the Divigion

Although it was established in 1919, the foundation session
of the Institution and its Divisions was in 1820.

Mr. F.W. Lawson, who was the Chief Emgineer of the
Metropolitan Water Supply bepartment was the ipaugural
Chajirman of the Perth Division, and an inaugural Vice-
President of the Institution. The first West Australian
o achieve the distinction of being elected to the position
of President ©f the Institution was Mr. C.E. Crocker, who
was Chief Engineer of theCity of Perth Electricity and Gas
Department. Mr. Crocker had been the last President af
the Wegtern Australian Institution of Engineers [i.e. in
1518). He was Chairman ¢f the Perth Division in 1924, a
Vice-President of the Institution in 1924 and 1925, and
fresident of the Institution in 1528.

other West Australians elected as President of the
Institution were Mr. ¢. Drake=Brockman (1940}, Professor
0.F. Blakey {1345), and Mr. J.p. Leach (1964)1. Mr, Drake~
Srockman was the Engineer for Morth-West in the Public
Works Department, and had been Chairman of the Perth
Divisien in 1937, FProfesscr Blakey was the Professor of
civil Engineering at the University of Western Rustralia,
and he had achieved the vnique distinetion of having heen
¢chajrman of the Perth Division op two cccasions - namely
1936 and 1942. Mr. J.D. Deach was the Commissicner af
Main Roads, and had been Chairman of the Perth Division
in 1949.

fhe chief executive officer of the Diwision is the Chairman
and the names of those who have held this position are
recorded on the honour board which has boen mmveiled
tonight., It ig mot within the intended scope of this

paper to comment on the individual careers of any of the
Chairman. Each in his own mapner has advanced the
ipterests of the Institution in accordance with the
opportunities which existed during his term of office.

apart from the two terms served by Professor Blakey which

I have already commented on, the other aspect which deserves
particular notice is the fathexr/zon combination of

Mr. F.C. Bdmondson (1934) and Mr. F. Edwondson (1968).

Owr recoquition of the activities of the senior office
bearers ¢f the bivizion would be incomplete if reference
wars not made to the work carried out by the Honorary
Secretaries - sSome of whom gave long pericds of service.
The longest serving of the Honorary Secretaries was

Mr. E.H. Oldham, who held the position for a 1Z-year
period from 1927 to 1938. Those who held the position for
Fuyear periods were Mr. J.B. Jukes (15339-1943}, Mr. W.D.
Benson {1949-1955} and Mr. E.E. Freeth (1963-136%). all
these gentlemen also becams Chairman of the Division.
The position of HonoTary Secretary was abolished at the
end of the 1972 Session.

The other important position on tbe Division executive is
that of Honorary Treasurer. There have been several
membars who have rendered long conspieicus service in
this position. The longest serving of the Honorary
Treasurers was Mr, F. Edwondson, whe held the pesition
for eight years during the period 1954-1957 and 1963~
1966. These who held the position for five-year periods
were Messrs. J. Andrew (1%21-1525), F.L.W. Moxi=zon (1930~
1934}, A.G. Sleoane {3i535-1339}, I. Daries (1940-1944),
8.R. Newsome (1945-1948), and V.M. Ball {1l9258-1%¢2).

As the Division membership grew, it became necessary to

engage secretarial staff. The first appointment was
Miss B, Knight who served for 12 years before retiring
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in 1947. She was followed by Migs W.M. Curry, who was
succeeded in July 1950 by Miss A.G. Caldwell. Hiss
Caldwell retired in 1973, and her 25 years of meritorious
service to the profession was recogniszed by Ber Majesty
the Queen by the Award of the M.B.E. The present
Secretary, Mr. Jehn Sullivan, was appointed in Wovember
1972.

Learned Society Aetivities -

The early Comtittees of the Perth Division carried on ang
expanded the learned society activities previously under-
taken by the Western Australian Imstitutien, and their
efforts were assisted by the regular technical
publications produced by the nsw Institution through its
Sydney headgquarters. Commencing with the 1320 Volume,
the Transactions of the Institution were publizhed annually,
and these included selected papers prepared by menmbers. In
response to a demand for more frequent publications, the
Transactions were supplemented in 1224 by a Quarterly
pulletin which covered general news items in addition te
technical papers, and was partiaslly financed from
advertising revenue. Commencing in 1929, the Journal of
the Institution was introduced to replace both the
Transactions and Quarterly Bulletin. The Journal provided
for the regular publication of technical papers as well as
relatively topical news items, and was very popular with
members. Tt was several years before the Perth Division
attempted any publications of its own.

Statyws and Qualificationsg

The Committees of the Perth Divisien alse became closely
invelved with activities in which the Western Rustralian
Institution had oot taken & great interest. These were
principally in matters associated with the general status
of engineers, and with qualifications fer membership.

It has already been mentioned that corporate members of
the Foundation Societies had been accepted as corporate
menbers, with the grade of Assocliate Member, in the new
Ingtitution. Alse at the beginning, the Institution had
adopted a realistic appreach by accepting that candidates
for Assopeiate Memberzhip, who were already well establighed
as practising professiomal engineers, were exempted from
examination regquirements.

Neverthelese, from the time of its foundatiom, the
Institution was determined €0 establish the status of the
profession by malntaining adequate entrance standards. The
first Council had set up a committee to formulate plans
for Institution controlled examinations, which would be a
pre-requisite for admission to cexporate membership. In
1921 this committee became known as the Board of Examiners,
and it has continued through to the present as one of the
most important Standing Committees of Council. In liaigon
with the principal educatiosal authorities throughout the
Commonwealith, efforts were progressively made to have
engineering training courses comply with stapdazds set by
the Instituation.

The Perth Division so-operated closely at the local level
in all matters associated with the establisbment of the
Tnstitution's examination system in 1922, and with its
subseguent supervision. It was also involwved in the
assessment and full recognition of the Bacheler of
Engineering course at the University of Western nustralia
in 1921, together with the assessment of certain subjects
of courses at the Perth Technical College and the Kalgoorlie
School of Mines, and their recognition as providing partial
exemption from the Institution's examination.

The Perth Division had maintained close contact with the
University of Western australia, which had been establish-
ed in 1913 with Engineering as one of its three foundation
facultics. Professox H.E. Whitfeld, who was the Foundatiod
Professor of Engineering, was a menber of the inawgural
pPivision Commitiee, Chairman of Division in 1921 and
Councillor 1921-1923.

The Division was represented on the Faculty of Engineerifd
and in 1920 the Division received a request from the
chanceller of the University to nominate a representative
on the Senate, Mr, F.W. Lawson was appointed.

The Division also campaigned actively te have the
Institution's gualification: recognised - particularly BY
the Publie Servise which employed the majority of engines



at that time. Some early success was achieved when on

4 September, 1921, the Publig¢ Service Commissioner in
Western Rustralia publizhed amendments to the Engineering
cadetship Regulations, which recognised that Associate
Membership of the Institution of Engineers Anstralia was
of equal status with that of the Inatitution of Clwil
Engineexrs, London, as the gualification for permanent
appeintment in the Public Service.

Bratutory Registration of Enginecrs

In its foundation year, as part of its cbiective to improve
the status of the profession, Council initiated meves for
the registration of endineers, and it established a

special Standing Committee o supervise these activities.
this activity was referred to in all the early Presidential
sddresses, and was to bg actively followed up over thm

next 13 years. The Coastitution of the Commeonwealth of
Rustralia did not inclede powers for federal legislation

on this matter. s6 the quesfion of registration of
engineers became a matter requiring individual Acts by
State Parliaments.

The Ferth Division seon became interested, and arranged a
fdeputation to the Minister for Works (Hon. W.J. George)

in March 1520 to seek suppoxrt for the registration

proposal. Council arranged for the preparaticn of a draft
bill which was passed to Divisions for comment. A copy of
the draft was forwarded £o each member of the Perth Diviszion,
2nd a General Meeting wag held on B November, 1520 on the
topic of "Discussion on a propesed Qualified Engineers
{Registration} Act for W.A.", and comments were senk

back to headguarters.

An amended draft Bill was approved by Council in April
1322, and referred back to Divisions with authority te

" make any alteratiochs thought to be necessary to adapt

the proposal to meet local requirements. A sub-

committee of Perth Division decided to make amendments,

to frame it more generally aleny the lines of the recently

enacted Architects Act of W.A.

In June 1923 with the support of the then Premier (Sir
James Mitchell), the Minister for Workz (Hon. W.J. George)
agreed to foster the Bill, which was sent to the
parliamentary draftsman for final preparation. The Bill
was prepared, buk was not introduced befere a change of
Government in 1924, The new Minister for Works showed no
interest in the Bill, and two separate moves to have it
introduced by private members also failed. Therefore in
botober 1928 headguarters was advised that there was little
likelihond of success.

The Institution achieved its ohiective only in Queensland,
Vhere In 1929 an Act was paszed which provided for the
Yegistration ¢f Professional Engineerg in that State.

Te Melbourne Divisios had managed to have a Bill prepared
and presented in the Legislative Assembly, but it lapsed
after having been refexred to a Select Committea.

ks o Tesult of sustained interest shown at the Engineering
Yonference in Hobart in February 1934, Council revitalised
its Standing Committee for Registration of Engineers and
M, r.3, Dumas, Past Chairman of Perth Division and
L2meillor wag appointed to the commitkee. A statement by
- F.C. Edmondson (Chairman of Perth Divisicn) explaining
:he registyation propesal was published in "The West
Ustralian® on 12 May, 1334, However, the new effort also
.Et With ne suecess, and although the Standing Committee
.ber,REgistration of Engineers was rotained until the
Sinting of World War II » the Institution had by this
. become reconciled to the Ldea that registration was
Wlikely to be achieved. '

flaries ana conditions

'E“cu;rr:ntly with ita efforts to achieve registration,

t Within the same general objective of Improving the

e U8 Of engineers, the Institution repponded to

for @Iship requests for assigtance to establish salaries

they . "dineers at a reasonmable level commensurate with .

gaes, FEAdNing and woxk value. For this purpose Council

i olished the Standing Committes on Professional Status
1927, and this Committco remained active until it was

anded in 1533.

In Western Australia the principal efforts were directed
towards improving the salaries and conditions of angincers
iJ} the publies sector. In 1936 a deputation waited on. the
Minister for Works to urge the passing of legislation to
require lecal govermment auwthorities to amploy qualified
engLuLers.

Hiile a genuine offort was made, and much solid work was
undertaken by the bivisions and by committees of Council
in producing information to agsist individual groups with
arbitration proceedings, &nd in arranging deputatiens to
Government Ministers, it beceme obvions during the thirtias
that the Institution was not an orginizstion that coanld
adequately commit itself to the problems of yemunsration
ard conditions applying to employee engineers, who made

up such a large proporticn of its total membership.

Early Professional Issues

The Institution's fixst Code of Ethics was published in
October  1926. However, in 1924 the Perth Division
decided to review the evidence given (particuiarly by
engineers} before a Select Committze appointed to intuire
into the operations of the Metropolitan Water Supply,
Sewerage and Drainage Department. An unfortunate event
associated with the inquiry was that before the £indings
of the Select Committee were released the Chief

Enginecr of the Department, My. F.W. Lawson (the

inaugural Chairman of the Perth Division), had committed
suicide.

The Division Committee took this action because it believed
that the status of the epgineering profescion had fallen

in public estimaticon. The report which was submitted by
Perth Division was approved by Council and published in the
(uarterly Bulletin of October 1825, for information and
guidance of all Institution members.

Another incident ccsurred in 1930 when the new Government
vnder Sir James Mitchell decided o combine the then
relatively minor office of Commissioner of Main Roads
with the major office of #nglneer in Chief of Public Works
Department, and appointed the Commissioner of Main Roads
to the combined position. The Enginger in Chief (Mr. F.W.
Stileman) who was Chairman of Perth Division at the time,
was retired az a surplus officer. There were certain
aspects ebout the incident which several members of the
profeesion considered to be unsatisfactory, and Eocllowing
requests by the Western Australian Councillers, C8uncil
made a formal protest to the Premier of Western Adstralia.
Thislis referred to Iin the Aonwal Report of the Institution
for 1930,

Standards

In 1822 the Institution publishéd a set of General
Conditionz of Contract for Electrical Works and in 13925
published 2 set of General Conditions of Contract for
Engineering Works Structures and Buildings., In 1520,

the responsibility for revisions of the General
Cenditions ¢f Contract was handed over to the Standards
Association of Australia, which had boen founded in 1929
as an amalgamaticn of two agsociations, namely the
Mistralian CommonwWealth Enginsering Standards Associatien
and the Amgtralian Commonwealth Association of Simplified
Practice. The former association had heen establizhed
by the Institution of Bngingers Australis in 1922. The
Institntion has always been dominantly represzented on the
Council of the Standards Rssociation of Rustralia, and
#ost Divisions have acted as its agents {n the capital
cities throughout Australia. This activity still remains
in Adelaide and Perth but will cease in both places later
this year.

Bighlights

an event of significance during the first decade was the
hosting of Perth Division of the 5th Annual Engineering
Conference, which was held during the peridd from 25
February to 4 March, 1927. The procedure (which continues
to the present day} of holding 2 full meeting of Council
25 well as the Annval Generasl Meeting of the Institution
in conjunction with the Annual Engineering Conference, had
been established with the inangural conference. In those
early days, it ensbled many of the members in Western
Australia to observe for the first time the operation of
the Institution’'s central administration. The total
registration at the Conference was 105.



In August 1935, the Perth Division muved from the
Professional Societies Rooms in Murray Street to temporary
acosmmodation in the W.A. Turf ¢lubh Building in Boward
Strest, In June 1938 the office and meeting room were
moved to Gledden Building on the cormer of William and
Hay Streets, znd this was to remain the home of the Perth
Divizion for more than 20 years.

For the Institution, the highlight of the thirties was its
success in obtaining incorporation by Foyal Charter. The
official announcement was made in March 1938 at the
cfficial opening of the 16th Annual Engineering Conference
which was being held in Sydney as part of the ¢elebration
of Australia's 150th Anpiversary. 7The granting of the
Royal Charter enabled Corporate Members of the Institution
to use the title of Chartered Engineer {Bustralial.

The Post War Industrial Action,

As World War II entered its coneluding stages, rehabilite-
ticn and post war training of ex-servicemen became active
issues. Inevitably the guestion of status and remuneration
were again raised, and in Janwary 1%45 the Institution
appeinted a Field Officer who was charged with the
responsibility of investigating and reporting on all
matters relevant to the status of engincers. Action was
quite rapid after this, and in July 1945 durinyg the
presidency of Professor Blakey, Council endorsed a proposal
to estebliszh an asseclation of professional sagineers for
registration in the Commonwealth Court of Conciliation and
Arbitration, and directed that draft articles of assogiatien
ba prepared.

The neme adeopted for the new organisation was the
Association of Professional Engineers Australia {i.e.
A.P.E.A.)

A.P.E.A. was constituted as a federal body on 16
Septenber 1946, and originally included enly Victoria,
Wew Scuth Wales and South Australia.

On 30 September 1946, the Perth Civision of the Institution
called & special meeting tQ inaugurate A.P.E.Al in Western
Australia and elect a provisional committee.

The Western Australian Branch was admitted to A.P.E_A.
#n 4 Wovember, 1944,

The first Federal Council of A.P.E.A. met in Melbourne
on 28 March 1947, and one of the Councillors from
Westorn Australia was Professor O.F. Blakey.

A.F.E.A. was to be cazlled on for much hard work in the
face of strong oppogitian, hefore it was successful in
phtaining its first Profescional Engineers Award in May
1961. This Award eztablished naticnal minimum salary
standards at the Qualified Engineer and Experienced
Enginger levels.

From the viewpoint of the Institution, the primcipal
aspect of the Professional Engineers Mwayd was that it
gave legal recognition to the Institution's accrediting
function, because it defined a "Qualified Engincer™ as
cne gualified to become & Graduate member of the
Institution of Engineers Rustralia, and an "Experienced
Engineer” as one gualified to be an Associate Member of
the Institution of Engineers Rustralia.

Between 1961 and 1963, the Council of the Institution
again made a detailed examination of the guestion of
legal registration, and finally in April L9E63 declared
that it did not now favour legal registration of
engineers in Australia.

Consulting Engineers

The action to which I hawve just referred had application
to the interests of the major proportion of the
Ingtituticon's membership, namely those in the category of
enployee engineers.

Another very important, although numerically much smaller.,
section of the Institution membership is the consulting
engineers. The consulting engineers have contipuous
direct public contact, and by their individunal performance
on pehalf of their clients and towards each other, they
set a standard, on the basis of whic¢h the whole
profession is often judged.

4,

The 1321 <ouncll had appointed a commitbtee to review
conditions of practice for consulting engineers, and to sey
a scale of fees that might be charged. The document which
it prepared was entitled "Professional Practice and Chargeg
of Consulting Engineers"™ and it was approved by Council ip
1326. The document was reviewed at intervals, but after
1955 the conditions of practice were published separately
to the scale of Iees.

] »
The most recent review is entitled "Conditions of
Professional Practice Loy Consuliing Engineers"™, and was
approved by Council in Hovember 1966. ‘fhe scale of feps
is reviewed by Council at regular intervals.

In 1937, Council resolwved that the setting up of
Consulting Engineers Panels within Divizicons should be
encouraged, and the first panel waz estabhlished in
Melbourne Division the following year.

In the early fifties, joint meetings of the hivision
panels were held, and in 1552 these led to the formation
of an independent organisation known as the Association
of Consulting Engineers AZustralia.

However, the Institution cohtinued to unofficially
recognise the Division panels, and in November 1339
council somewhat belatedly approved conditions for their
operation.

In Western Australia during pre-war years, the
oppartunities for consultants were guite limited, and
few practises werc established. During the fiftieg the
econemic position improwved, and & Consulting Engineers
Panel was formed by the Perth Division in 1%56 and it
continued until February 1371,

The Western Australian Chapter of A.C.E.A. was established
in 1962, and is an active greoup with a current twembership
of 52. Like A.FP.B.a., it iz an organisation which is
guite separate from the Institution, and is thus oubside
the scope of this paper. WNevertheless, it would be ’
inappropriate if I did not make reference to the unigue
contribution made by Dr. G.B. Hill, who was Federal
President of A.C.E.A. in 1871 and 19%72 while being
Chairman of the Westexn Awstralia Divisicn of the
Institution in 1%71.

Property Developmant

In the vears following World War II, pivision membership
continued €0 increase Very satisfacterily, and the 580
membership mark was passed im 1945, This brought with it
confidence concerning the feasibility of the bivision
developing its own offiee and auditorium. In 1955 the
bivision purchased & prxeperty in Hooper Street, West
Perth, and planned a building which was to be knuwn as
Science House - being the same name as that of Institution
headguarters in Gloueester Street, Sydney. The new
building at 10 Hooper Street, was officially opened by
the Governor of Western Australia, Sir Charles Gairdner
on 16 February 1%5%. The Institution's facilities have
been progressively expanded, and the final activity was
to demslish the old xesidence at 12 Hooper Strest and
construct the parking arsea in 1972,

Branches and Groups

From the time it was established, the Bye=laws af the
Institution have provided for the formatipn of branches
within Divisions, for -the cleoser co-ordination of techaical
matters. For many years the Perth Bivision considered
that it could adeqguately cater for the learned society
necds of its members without specialiet bramches. HoweveI,
with the continued growth in membership, and the rapid
increases in technology, the varicus diseiplines required
more autonomy, and Branches were pregressively @stablished.

The first speclalist unit o be established was the Perth
Division Group of the Australiasn Natignal Society of

Soil Mechapics and Foundation Englineering. Its name was
changed to the Gecmechanics Group in 1970, when the
Australian Geomechanins Society wasg cutablished as a

joint activity batween the Institution of Enginesrs,
rustralia, and the Australasjan Institute of Mining and
Matollurgy. Other branches were formed within the :
Divisicn as follows:- Hydrology (1965}, Mechanical {1966}
Concrete (1967), Electrical & Electronics ([1967), :
Envircomental (1970}, Civil (1975) a&nd Chemical (1976).

Mo e
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Prior to World War II, the only significant area outside
of Ferth offering employment for engineers was the
Eastern Goldfieldz, and a Group of the Perth Division was
established at Kalgooriie in 1825, The Group went intws -
abeyanee in 1937, but was revived in 1948.
sponsored post war programres weps put into effect, and
more recently with the mineral development in the Pilbara,
groups werm established at Bunbury (1955}, Albany (1961),
Geraldton [1963), Rimberley (1963), Dampier {1972}, Port
Hedland (1972), and Mt. Rewman {1974},

pwards

In accordence with the provisiens in its original
constitution, and subsequently by the Royal Chartex, the
Institution has made a nuomber of annual awards. The
national awards have always been administered by head-
quartars, but many of the Divisions have been guite active
in making awards to encourage pereons in the category of
Graduate (formerly Juniocr) and Student members, and imore
recently also to gtudents at teptiary educarion
sstablishments.

The first award with{n the Perth Division was ipitiated in
1832, and made annually for the best technical papar

presented by a Junior or Student member. This prize had .a
fairly erratic history and in many years no award was made.

Following the death of Professor O.F. Blakey in 1952, a

fund was opened for the purpose of founding a prize in his
honour, and donstions were received from members ef the
Perth Division. The prize whish consisted of a cash

premium was to he available for competition among Graduate
and Student members. It was approved by Council in March
1954 and was first awarded in 1955. It raplaced the earlier
prize which is referred to above.

Annnal awards to final year students in engineering courses
were introduced at the Western Australian Institute of
Technology (1969) and the Dniversity of Western Australia
{1970}, The latter two awards initially consisted of cash
4 premiums which were funded by the Division., In 1876,

{1 Council reviawed its policy on awards, and the principal

| effect on the Western Australia Division was that medals

| ¥ere added to its three existing awards, Council also

' 2pproved the recommendation from the Division Committee
that the medals awarded to students at the University of

| Western Australiam and the Western Australian Institute of

| Technology be named in honour of Sir Russell Dumas and

[ ¥r. J.D. Leach, both of whom had given great service to the
3, Btate and to the Institution.

{ thanges in the Sinties

Por nearly its £irgt 50 years, there had been few
}-fionificant changes within the Tnstitution. However, in
|- the late sixties three fairly significant alterations
[ made, The first af these was in may 1968, when an
inendment was made to the Bye~laws in order to provide
that those previcusly known as Members becams Fellows .
23 these previeusiy known as Associate Members became
Xenbers. The only previous change in designation, had
&1 made in 1551 when the grade of Junior Member was
*eplaced by the grade of Graduate fembor.

3 he time of its foundation, there were seven Divisions

Yethin the Institution. Twe of these (i.e. Sydney and

Y] tastle) were in Mew South Wales, and there was one

. Vision in each bf the other States, Canberra Division
s established in 1926. It has slready been pointed

t that wigh the exception of Tasmania. each Division

o SFiginally identified by the name of the city in

rich its off{ce was located. However in 1367, the

T Shane and Adelaide Divisions becams the Queenslend and
Uth Australian Divisions respectively. In 1968 the

Eln;’u:ne Divizion became the Victoria Division, and

hh&tily in 156% the Perth Division bacame the Western

L -

‘g: PTiginal constitution provided for the Council to

s, 3ch Year a Junior Vice-President, who would undex

E-thml ¢lrcumstances become a Senior Vice-President in the
agi i 0%, and then would be eslevated to the position of

hlﬂent in the following year. In 1968 the Bye-laws

dended to pravide that cach year Coupcil would

* from its own numbers a Senlor Vice-President (who

2Ssume the offige of President the following year)

Tive (5) vice-Presidents. The Vice-Presidents were

al

T

£

alia pivision.

B

.xights to the position of Saenier Vice-Prasident.: .. %he

As Governnment . -

to be elocted asnually by Council, and be eligible
a maximum term of three Consecuiive years, But with bo

Vice-~Presidents form the nucleus of the Executive Commities
.ef Coungil, They are available to undertéke. specialicl .
projecth requested by the President apd at the same. biwe .
the systen enables the =mall er Divisions to be represented
by a senler office beatsr more frequently than they could
wpe to provide a President,

Publjzatioms

For many years, the only publication ventuwe by the. Perth |
Divigion was restrigted to the notices conceyning Gendial
Meotings of Division, However, in Septembey 1544, it was
decided to expand these notices with local items of .
general interest to members, and therehy the Perth Division
Bulletin was established., This is still published : .
requlanmly but sinee March 1569 it has been known as "The
Charte Engineer”. A new format of Chartered Engimeer
was intreduced in July 1%74.

Whet the Journal of the Institution was introduced in 1529,
it included both general news items as well as the technical
papers which had been previously published in the
Trangactions, and therefore, for the naxt 29 years, the
cover of the Jowrmnal carried the bapner "Incorporating

the Transactions of the Institution”. In 1958 Council
resolved to introduece publications which would better
cater for specialised fields, and arranged to separately
publish the Civil Engineering Transactions and the
Electrical-Mechanical Engineering Transactions, leaving
the Journal for technical papers of general interest plus
news items. In 1964 the Electrical En~ineexring
Transactions were published separately and the Mechanical-
Chemical Engineering Transactions werz introduced.

In 1875 the publishing of the Transactions became the
responsibility of the Colleges, znd each Collage now
produces o separate publication. a further development
which was approved by Council for implementation in 1977,
is that all Transaction papers will in future alsc be
available as “separates”; that is they will be printed
and can be made available as separate articles hefora
the bound volumes are produced.

On 5 Novembey 1376, the Institution launched its news
megazine known as "Engincers Australip™, and this
replaced the Journal which had been published every two
months in latter years. "Engineers hustralia™ has &
modern magazine style layout, and uges as its model the
"New Civil Enginesr” which i published by the Institution
of Civi) Engingers in the tnited Kingdom. It is heing
published fortnightly and is designed to meet a cleaarly
identified need for information on topical events of
interest and concern to engineers. Since its inception,
"Engineers Australia® has provided up—to=-date news from
Division2 and Colleges. This service is to be expanded
in May 1377 to publish details of Bivision mgetings, etc.,
and thereby allow the Divisions to dispense with their
own regular bulletins.

conglusion

From the outset, Council has guite intentionally left the
Divigions with a fair degree of autonomy: and because
they were the successors of the Poundation Societies, the
bivisions naturally displayed certain ingividual
differences. 70 some extent the Institution has followed
the trend of all organizations having a federal structure,
and the acthority of the central administration has
progressively become more dominant. However, the Divisions
bave retainefl adegquate autoncmy, and all have retained
the basic individuality needed to adapt to local
requirements. .

The Divizions With their branches and groups can be
expected to retain a key role in the crganisational
structure of the Institution, even though at the Annunal
Generzl Meeting in 1974 another major organisatiomal

unit was established, when the membership was also
divided into five Colleges, The Colleges were introduced
because, with the rapid development of teclmology and the
increasing need for specialization, there came & strong
desire {(paxticularly within the large Divisions} for the
main disciplines to be vo-ordinated at the national level.
This was also scen as a method to counter the tendency
for the profession to fragment itself in the manner which
had eccurred in Britain.




in the re=-drafting of the Bye-laws and Regulations which
wAS necessary to accommodate the Colleges, a ¢onscious
effort was made to preserve the statona of Divisions.
Provision was made for 10 of the 14 members on each
College Board to be ele¢ted by Divisions, and at the same
time the Chairman of each Division was made a full member
of Council.

From its vexy humble beginning with 79 memhers in 1920,
the Western Australia Divisioen has grown to a memberzhip
of 2,437 by the end of 18976. This makes it now the
fourth largest Division within the Institution, following
Victoria, Sydney and OQueensilang in that order., The rate
of growth of the Division has always closely followed

the Statg's industrial pregress, and the Divisicn there-
fore locks forward with confidence to the future.

There can be little doubt that the Institution has been
of immense value o the profession in aspechs such as
improved knowledge, improved status and better cutside
appreciation, and we might ask if this can reasonzbly
continue .

At the very core of the Institution is its Cede of Ethics,
based on the idealogical appreach that the true
professional is motivated by an cbligation to the
comunity and pride in hisg work, which takes preference
over considerations of reward or self-interest.

In order that they may be comsidered adeguate to cop
in their traditiconal rale az competent industrial
innovators, engineers must be able to communicate with
the public and demonstrate that, not only do they
possess the necessary breadth of knowledge, hut thar
they also have an understanding of the complex Fangs of
political, social, environmental and economic factarg
which affect our medern society.

tinyg

-
All this places a great responsibility on the Inatitutian
to show itself as an efficvient erganisation having the
vitality to motivate the profession into adapting to the
needs of the community in this peried of rapid
technological and social change. The Inastitution is
conscious of its role and can provide the hecessary
facilities, but, if we are to ber successful a greater
thrust must come f£rom our very large, but somewhat
apathetic, general membership.
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